
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

September 16, 2014 5:15 PM 
 

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jan Moore 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Gary Lewis 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations  
A) Presentation of the “Adopt a Spot” (adopt-a-location) program and recognition of 

Steve Burrell with Downtown Rotary Club of Statesboro for their partnership in the 
program. 
 

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 
 

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 09-03-2014 Council Minutes 
b) 09-09-2014 Public Hearing Minutes (12:00 pm) 
c) 09-09-2014 Public Hearing Minutes (6:00 pm) 
 

B) Consideration of a motion to approve the PD to surplus a 2004 Ford Crown Victoria 
(VIN # 2FAFP71W44X124674) with 129,290 miles and non-feasible repairs to the 
FD for vehicle extrication training. Upon completion of training the vehicle will be 
sold for scrap. 
 

C) Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-31: A Resolution setting the 
millage rate for ad valorem (property) taxes for the 2014 calendar year for the city of 
Statesboro, Georgia at 6.358. 
 

D) Consideration of a Motion to approve the due date of December 20, 2014 for the  
      City of Statesboro Property Tax Bills 

 
 

6. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve  APPLICATION #  RZ 14-
06-02:  L & S Acquisitions, LLC and CFN Partners, LLC requests a zoning map 
amendment pursuant to the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance from R8 (Single-Family 
Residential) and R10 (Single-Family Residential) Districts to PUD(Planned Unit 
Development)  to allow for attached and detached single family residential units for 60 
acres of property located on S & S Railroad Bed Road (Tax Parcel Number 107 000009 
000). 

 
 



 
 

7. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION #  RZ 14-08-
02:  H. Jackson Wallace requests a zoning map amendment pursuant to the Statesboro 
Zoning Ordinance from R3 (Medium Density Multiple-Family Residential) and R10 
(Single-Family Residential) Districts to PUD(Planned Unit Development) District to 
allow for attached single family structures for 38.79 acres of property located on S & S 
Railroad Bed Road (Tax Parcel Number 107 000005 000).  
 

8. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION #  V 14-07-
04 The Hamptons-Statesboro/H. Jackson Wallace requests a variance from Section 701 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance from the required 35' height to 45' building height 
for a  development at 351 Rucker Lane (Tax Parcel #MS52000004000). 

 
9. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to approve APPLICATION # RZ 14-08-

01: The Islands Phase III, LLC requests a zoning map amendment pursuant to 
the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance from R4 (High Density Residential) District to CR 
(Commercial Retail) District for a 4.89 acre portion of the property located adjacent to 
Lanier Drive immediately South of Nassau Drive. (Tax Parcel  #MS63000002003). 

 
10. Consideration of a Motion and First Reading of Ordinance 2014-02: An Ordinance 

Amending Chapter 2 of the Statesboro Municipal Code Regarding Authorities, Boards 
and Commissions- Statesboro Planning Commission. 

 
11. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-30: A Resolution appointing R. 

Jeremy Ragan to the Statesboro Planning Commission 
 

12. Consideration of a Motion to award the purchase of a Tymco street sweeper utilizing the 
H-GAC buyer’s contract in the amount of $203,620.00. 

 
13. Consideration of a motion to award a contract to retrofit an existing refuse truck with a 

new hoist system to Consolidated Disposal in the amount of $48,387.00 via price 
extension from the previous bid award approved by city council on May 20, 2014. 

 
14. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Contract for Grant of Easement from Paul 

A.Whitlock Jr. 
 

15. Consideration of a Motion to approve a license agreement with Central of Georgia 
Railroad Company to maintain, operate and remove certain infrastructure within the 
limits of A.J. Riggs Road.  

 
16. Other Business from City Council 

 
17. City Managers Comments 

 
18. Public Comments (General) 

 
19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



City of Statesboro 
Adopt-A-Sp t Program 

 
 
Dear Adopt-A-Spot Applicant, 
 
Thank you for your interest in the Adopt-A-Spot Program. Should you elect to serve in this community 
improvement program, you will become a valuable partner with the City of Statesboro to help make a 
difference in the quality of life within our community.  
 
Enclosed you will find two forms, (a.) the Adopt-A-Spot Request for Participation Form and (b.) the 
Adopt-A-Spot Letter of Agreement. The first step in the adopting process is to complete the Adopt-A-
Spot Request for Participation Form and return it to the City of Statesboro Public Works. Once received, 
staff will forward your request to the Department or Division that is currently responsible for 
maintaining the site of interest. A representative from the responsible Department or Division will then 
contact you to discuss the site selection and determine the scope of services. A meeting will be arranged 
to assist you in completing the Adopt-A-Spot Letter of Agreement and to determine the appropriate 
Adopt-A-Spot sign and suitable location, if applicable. After all forms are complete and returned, your 
application will be forwarded to the city manager for official approval. 
 
If you have additional questions about the Adopt-A-Spot Program, please call Statesboro Public Works at 
(912) 764-0681. Again, thank you for your interest in the Adopt-A-Spot Program. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jason Boyles 
Statesboro Public Works 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Adopt-A-Spot 
Request for Participation 
 

Adopting Organization Name: _________________________________________________________ 

Type of Organization:  (check one)   Business  ___  Non-Profit  ___  Civic  ___  Individual ___ Other ____ 

Primary Contact: ____________________________ Home Phone: ______________________________ 
                                              (print name) 
Mobile Phone: ______________________________  E-mail address: _____________________________ 

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                              City                                                                      State                                                   Zip 
Secondary Contact: __________________________Home Phone: _______________________________ 
                                                      (print name) 
Office Phone: ________________________________E-mail address: _____________________________ 

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                             City                                                                       State                                                   Zip 
 

Type of Area Interested in Adopting: 

Highway/Street ___ Neighborhood Green Space ___ City of Statesboro Facility Grounds ___ 

Trail/Greenway ___ Stream ___ Park Areas ___ Other ___ 

 

Based on above categories, do you have a specific location/area you are interested in adopting? 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Who will perform the work? (i.e. volunteers, organization, contract services) 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Return the completed Adopt-A-Spot Request for Participation Form to Statesboro Public Works 

 
Note: 
Submittal of this form does not obligate a group/individual to a particular project, but gives citizens the 
opportunity to initiate or inquire about participation in the Adopt-A-Spot program. The completed form 
will be forwarded to the appropriate Department for site approval/recommendation. A City 
representative will then contact the applicant. 

 



 

Adopt-A-Spot 
Request for Participation 
 

Name of Adopting Organization: _______________________________________________________  

Date of Adoption: ________________  Responsible Department/Division: _______________________  

Location: _________________________________________________________________________ 

  

Purpose: The purpose of this agreement is to define the roles and responsibilities of each party involved 
in the Adopt-A-Spot program regarding the volunteer care of land owned by the City of Statesboro. 
Parties to the agreement are the City of Statesboro (known as City) and 
__________________________________ (known as the Adopting Organization). 
 
Description of Services: The Adopting Organization agrees to adopt and care for the property owned by 
City located at ________________________________________________. The Adopting Organization 
will provide for installments and/or maintenance services as described in the Scope of Services. Uses 
other than those stated require the written approval of City. 
 
Terms: The term of this agreement will be for a period of _______year(s) (minimum one year) beginning 
___________________________. The agreement must be renewed based on written notification at 
least 30 days prior to the expiration date. The Adopting Organization may terminate this agreement 
provided a written notice is given to City at least 90 calendar days in advance. City may terminate this 
agreement at any time with written notice to the Adopting Organization. 
 
Installation: The Adopting Organization will complete installations as described in the Scope of Services 
with the approval of the responsible Department/Division. All installations made by the Adopting 
Organization must be made in accordance with City standards, codes, and ordinances and will become 
the property of City. 
 
Maintenance: Maintenance shall be performed by the Adopting Organization on schedule as described 
in the Scope of Services. The responsible Department will monitor maintenance for compliance with the 
Adopt-A-Spot Letter of Agreement. The Adopting Organization agrees to: 
 
(a.)Provide for the maintenance services agreed to in the Scope of Services. 
(b.)Notify responsible Department/Division of any property damages, theft, or illegal activity on adopted 
property. 
(c.)Maintain a clean and safe environment on the adopted property. 
 
Miscellaneous: The Adopting Organization is an independent agent and not an agent of City. All 
employees or sub-contractors hired by the Adopting Organization are employees and sub-contractors of 
the Adopting Organization and not employees or sub-contractors of City. 
 
Contact: 
Adopt-A-Spot Coordinator:  Statesboro Public Works Director (912) 764-0681  



 

Responsible City of Statesboro Department/Division: 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Primary Contact for Adopting Organization: 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Waiver of Liability: For and in consideration of City of Statesboro acceptance of this Adopt-A-Spot Letter 
of Agreement for the site located at ___________________________________________, the         
                                                                                                                                                                 (Location)       
________________________________________________________hereby agrees to indemnify and 
                                                         (Adopting Organization)   
hold harmless City of Statesboro, its agents and employees, from all liability, loss and damage which 
may be sustained by reason of injury to any person, damage to any property including theft, through 
any and all acts or omissions of the Adopting Organization, his agents, employees or sub-contractors 
during and as a part of the Adopt-A-Spot program as set forth in this Adopt-A-Spot Letter of Agreement 
dated ____________________. This indemnification shall not be applicable to any loss or damage 
resulting from the sole negligence of City of Statesboro, its agents and employees. 

I have read this agreement and all attachments and understand and agree with all the specified Terms of 
the Adopt-A-Spot program. 

Adopting Organization Primary Contact: _________________________________________________ 
(Print Name) 
 

Signature: ________________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
 
Responsible Department/Division: ________________________________________________________ 

                                 (Print Name) 
 

Signature: _________________________________________Date: ___________________________ 
 
Statesboro Public Works Director: ________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                  (Print Name) 
 
Signature: _________________________________________Date: ___________________________ 
 
Adopt-A-Spot plan approval for adoptions involving landscape improvements or maintenance: 
 
Signature: __________________________________________Date:____________________ 
 
City Manager Approval:  _____________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                  (Print Name) 
 
Signature: _________________________________________Date: ___________________________ 



 

Adopt-A-Spot 
Scope of Services 
 

Name of Project: ___________________________________________________________________ 

Location: _________________________________________________________________________ 

This will be: (a) Installation __________  (b)  Maintenance _________  (c)  Both_________________ 

(a) Installation Description (Attach plans, schedule, etc., if applicable):          Attachments  (Y/N) ___ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

(b) Maintenance Description (Services provided and frequency of maintenance): 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Adopt-A-Spot Project Start Date: __________________________________________________ 

Length of Commitment (minimum of one year): _________________________________________ 

Adopt-A-Spot Sign Requested: (Y/N) ______ Location of Sign: ___________________________ 

Utility Locate: If Adopt-A-Spot sign is requested or if holes are dug for plantings, adopting  

organization is responsible for contacting Utility Protection Center, 1 800 282-7411, to locate   

underground utilities prior to work. 

Utility Protection Center Contacted (Y/N/NA) : ______ Date Contacted: ______________________ 

 

Adopting Organization Representative Signature: _________________________________________ 

Statesboro Public Works Director Signature: _____________________________________________ 



 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
Council Minutes 

September 03, 2014 

 
A regular meeting of the Statesboro City Council was held on September 03, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. in 
the Council Chambers at City Hall. Present were Mayor Jan J. Moore, Council Members: Will 
Britt, Phil Boyum, John Riggs, Gary Lewis and Travis Chance.  Also present were Interim City 
Manager Robert Cheshire, City Clerk Sue Starling, City Attorney Alvin Leaphart, Assistant City 
Engineer Jason Boyles and Director of Community Development Mandi Cody. 
   
The meeting was called to Order by Mayor Jan Moore. 
 
The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman John Riggs. 
 
Recognitions/Public Presentations  

A) Retirement of City Employees  
a) Chip Godbee, Building Official for the Engineering Department- 20 years   
b) Eddie Brown, Equipment Operator for the Public Works Department – 20 

years 
B) Caleb Griffin, Recipient of the SHRM Georgia “HR Student of the Year”. He 

was recognized for being an exceptional undergraduate student preparing for 
work in the field of Human Resource Management. 

C) Statesboro Area Society for Human Resource 
Management Chapter, Recipient of the SHRM Georgia "Chapter of the Year" 
Best in Georgia Award. It recognizes a chapter that has demonstrated excellence 
in the execution of a project related to one of the Core Areas.  Nominees serve as 
role models for other chapters, set the standards others follow and have applied 
their expertise to enhance chapter effectiveness in executing SHRM’s mission to 
serve and advance the profession. 

 
Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire commended Mr. Godbee for his years of service and 
accomplishments with the City. Mayor Moore presented him with a retirement plaque. 

Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire and Robert Seamans commended Mr. Brown for his years 
of service with the City. Mayor Moore presented him with a retirement plaque. 

Human Resource Jeff Grant recognized Caleb Griffin as “HR Student of the Year” and Mayor 
Moore presented him with a trophy. 

Human Resource Director Jeff Grant updated Council on the Human Resource Management 
“Chapter of the Year award” that was received by his department. Mayor Moore presented a 
trophy to the entire department. 

 

Public Comments (Agenda Item): None 
 

http://www.shrm.org/communities/volunteerresources/pages/clas.aspx


 
 

 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 08-19-2014 Council Minutes 
b) 08-19-2014 Public Hearing Minutes 

B) Consideration of a motion for the surplus and disposal of the old City Hall chiller 
     unit and dehumidifier unit which have recently been replaced and removed from 
     service.   

 
Councilman Riggs made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt to approve the 
consent agenda in its entirety. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote.  
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2014-28: A Resolution appointing Jeff 
Grant to the Board of Directors of the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau. 
 
Councilman Boyum made a motion, seconded by Councilman Chance to approve Resolution 
2014-28: A Resolution appointing Jeff Grant to the Board of Directors of the Statesboro 
Convention and Visitors Bureau. Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in 
favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote.  
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve a “Sole Source” purchase to HD Supply in the 
amount of $80,500.00 for Sensus water meters and transmitters (standardized City 
equipment).  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Will Britt made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to approve  a “Sole 
Source” purchase to HD Supply in the amount of $80,500.00 for Sensus water meters and 
transmitters (standardized City equipment). Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance 
voted in favor of the motion. The motion carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
Other Business from City Council 
 
Mayor Moore expressed her sympathy for the death of GSU student Michael Gatto. She stated 
she had received many, many calls from concerned citizens asking why the City does not shut 
down the establishment. She stated the City Ordinance does not allow Council to shut down the 
establishment of Rude Rudy’s immediately. City Attorney Alvin Leaphart also explained how 
this case was different from the cases for Platinum Lounge and Prime Time Lounge.  

City Manager’s Comments 
 
Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire updated Council on the purchase of the 5 ballast to 
replace the old ones at the Wastewater Plant. He also commended Caleb Griffin and the Human 
Resource Department for their awards. 
 
Director of Human Resource Jeff Grant updated Council on the Fit by ’15 program along with 
the “Paint the Town Blue” events. 



 
 

City Clerk Sue Starling reminded Council of the public hearing dates for the proposed property 
tax millage rate increase. 

Finance Director Cindy West updated Council on the upcoming work sessions that will begin the 
budget process for 2015-2016. 

Public Comments (General): None 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
Councilman Chance made a motion, seconded by Councilman Lewis to adjourn the meeting. 
Councilman Britt, Boyum, Riggs, Lewis and Chance voted in favor of the motion. The motion 
carried by a 5-0 vote. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:45 am. 

 

 
 



 
 

PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 
September 09, 2014 

A Public Hearing was held on September 9th, 2014 at 12:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 
City Hall to solicit input from the public on the proposed 2014 millage rate of 6.358 for property 
taxes. Present was Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire, Councilmember John Riggs  as well 
as other staff members along with the media. There were no citizens present at the meeting. 

Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire called the Public Hearing to order. He stated that Council 
was calling for a proposed rate increase of 6.358. 

 Hearing no comments, Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire adjourned the meeting. 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:03 p.m.  

 



 
 

PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 
September 09, 2014 

A Public Hearing was held on September 9th, 2014 at 6:09 p.m. in the Council Chambers at City 
Hall to solicit input from the public on the proposed 2014 millage rate of 6.358 for property 
taxes. Present was Mayor Jan Moore, Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire as well as staff 
members. There was no media present at the meeting.  

Mayor Jan Moore called the Public Hearing to order. She stated that Council was calling for a 
proposed rate increase of 6.358. She also stated the increase would not affect the majority of 
property holders. 

Derrick Solomon attended the meeting but had no comments regarding the millage rate but did 
state he was with the concerned clergy’s of Bulloch County and  wanted to extend their services 
to make the community a better place for all citizens.  

 Interim City Manager Robert Cheshire adjourned the meeting. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m.  

 





 RESOLUTION 2014-31: A RESOLUTION SETTING THE MILLAGE RATE FOR AD 
VALOREM (PROPERTY) TAXES FOR THE 2014 CALENDAR YEAR FOR THE CITY OF 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA AT 6.358. 

THAT WHEREAS, cities in Georgia rely upon the ad valorem (property) tax as one of the major 
sources of revenue to finance general government operations and capital outlay acquisitions; and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 5 of Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia authorizes cities to levy an ad 
valorem tax, and details the requirements necessary to do so; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Statesboro has complied with those requirements, including the 
advertisement of the proposed millage rate and a five-year history of levies; percentage 
increases; and whether a rollback of the millage rate was required; and  

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the FY 2015 Operating Budget and Capital Budget, 
the growth in the tax digest from new construction, and the recommendation from the City Clerk 
that the millage rate be set at the same rate as the prior tax year;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Statesboro, Georgia assembled this 16th day of September, 2014, as follows:  

\ Section 1. That the millage rate for ad valorem (property) tax purposes for calendar year  
2014 is hereby set at 6.358 mills on all of the taxable real and personal property within the 
corporate limits of the City of Statesboro, Georgia, after applying all legal exemptions, credits, 
tax relief grants, and similarly authorized deductions.  

Section  2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to have the necessary 
tax bills prepared and mailed, and to use any and all statutorily-approved methods to collect said 
property taxes in a timely manner.  

Passed and adopted this____ day of __________, 2014.  

CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA  

 

By: ________________________ 
                                                                                                               Jan J. Moore, Mayor  

 
 

Attest: _______________________ 
                                                                                                                    Sue Starling, City Clerk  
 































































































































































 

ORDINANCE #2014-02: 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE STATESBORO MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGARING AUTHORITIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS- STATESBORO PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted an ordinance concerning the administration of 
the Statesboro Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined there is sufficient reason and need to amend 
Chapter 2 of the Statesboro Municipal Code regarding the Statesboro Planning Commission;   
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled that Chapter 2, Authorities, Boards and Commissions, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Statesboro is hereby amended as follows:  
 
Section 1.   

a) Section 2-69, previously repealed, shall be replaced as follows: 
 Qualifications of members for appointment.  Members considered for appointment to the 
Planning Commission by the governing body shall be residents of Bulloch County, Georgia. 

 
Section 2.  Section 2-70 Qualification of members for service shall be repealed in its entirety. 
 
Section3. Should any section, subsection, or provision of this ordinance be rules invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, then all other sections, subsections and provisions of this ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  That this Ordinance shall be and remain in full force and effect from and after its adoption 
on two separate readings. 
 
 
First Reading:  September 16, 2014 
 
Second Reading:  October 7, 2014 
 
Adopted this ___________ day of ___________________, 2014. 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
___________________________ 
Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 
 
Attested to: 
 
______________________________ 
Sue Starling, City Clerk  
 



RESOLUTION 2014-30 

APPOINTING R. JERMY RAGAN TO THE STATESBORO PLANNING COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, Section 2-67 of Chapter 2 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances states that the membership of 
the Statesboro Planning Commission shall consist of seven members who shall be appointed by the governing 
body.  The appointment of members of the planning commission upon the effective date of this division shall 
be as follows: 

(1) Posts 1, 3, 5, and 7 shall be appointed for terms of two years. 
(2) Posts 2, 4, and 6 shall be appointed for terms of four years. 

Each successor appointed to the planning commission thereafter shall be appointed for a term of four years.  
Members may be appointed to two successive terms; and 

WHEREAS, Jeremy Ragan was appointed to the Statesboro Planning Commission by the Statesboro City 
Council on September 20, 2012 for a two (2) year term of service; and  

WHEREAS, the term of that appointment is set to expire on September 20, 2014; and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to exercise the appointment power provided above; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council agree and affirm that Jeremy Ragan has faithfully served one term 
on the Statesboro Planning Commission; and furthermore, that Mr. Ragan has both the knowledge and 
character that that will continue to be helpful to the Statesboro Planning Commission in discharging its 
responsibilities; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia 
as follows: 

Section 1. That Jeremy Ragan is hereby appointed to the Statesboro Planning Commission for a four (4) year 
term. 

Section 2. That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 Adopted this ___ day of ____, 2014 

 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
  
______________________________ 
 Jan J. Moore, Mayor 
 

Attested by: 
 
___________________ 
Sue Starling, City Clerk 









 
 

1/2 
 

City of Statesboro 
Engineering Department --- Public Works 

P.O. Box 348     912.764.0681 (Voice) 
Statesboro, Georgia   30459  912.764.7680 (Fax) 

MEMORANDUM
 
To:  Robert Cheshire, PE, Interim City Manager 
 
From:  Jason Boyles, Senior Assistant City Engineer 
 
Date:  September 7, 2014 
 
Re: Recommendation of Price Extension for Additional Refuse Truck Retrofit 
 
At the May 20, 2014 meeting city council awarded the refuse truck to rolloff retrofit bid to Consolidated 
Disposal in the amount of $48,387.00.   The original bid pricing was well below our budget and over $5,000 
below the next bidder.   Staff has been very pleased with the vendor’s service and product quality received 
for retrofitting our existing truck.  Therefore I consulted with the vendor and he has agreed to extend the 
previous bid price to retrofit another of our trucks for the same price.  This will provide a second rolloff 
truck, which is critical to have redundancy in operations and as a reserve vehicle when both trucks are not in 
operation.  All terms and conditions of the previous bid will apply herein as the city will be “piggy-backing” 
our own contract that was initially awarded on May 20, 2014.  As with the initial bid award, this purchase 
will also be paid from 2007 SPLOST proceeds. 
 
As you may recall, staff has chosen to retrofit our existing refuse trucks in lieu of purchasing a new complete 
rolloff truck because the purchase price of a new truck is approximately $155,000.  Because of the City’s 
rigorous preventive maintenance practices we are able to effectively retrofit 3 of our existing trucks for the 
same price as only 1 new truck.  This should prove to be a very resourceful and fiscally responsible decision 
for the City. 
 
As is the case with other bid pricing extensions I have consulted with the purchasing director, Darren 
Prather, regarding this particular pricing extension and he is also in agreement with this proposal.  Please let 
me know if you need to discuss this further. 



CONTRACT FOR GRANT OF EASEMENT 
 
 This Contract for Grant of Easement (hereinafter referred to as the “Contract”) is 

made and entered into as of the _____ day of _______________, 2014, by and between 

The Mayor and City Council of Statesboro (hereinafter referred to as the “Buyer”) and 

Paul A. Whitlock, Jr. (hereinafter referred to as the “Seller”). 

  For and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Buyer agrees to buy and Seller agrees 

to sell a permanent thirty foot (30’) utility easement and a temporary fifty foot (50’) 

construction easement described as follows:    

 
All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being in the 44th G.M.D. 
of Bulloch, County, City of Statesboro, Georgia, being shown as a 
“Required Thirty Foot (30’) Permanent Utility Easement containing 0.061 
Acre” and a “Required Fifty Foot (50’) Temporary Construction Easement 
containing 0.116 Acre” shown on a plat prepared by Thomas M. Lewis, 
Registered Land Surveyor for Maxwell-Reddick and Associates, Inc. 
which is dated April 21, 2014 and recorded in Plat Book 65, Page 491, 
Bulloch County Records.  Said plat is made a part of this agreement by 
reference and a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A. 

  

 As consideration therefor, Buyer agrees to provide to Seller, at no cost to Seller, 

at such time that water and sewer is available and requested by the Seller, three (3) water 

taps, each up to 2 inches (2”) in size, and one (1) sewer tap, up to 6 inches (6”) in size, to 

serve the parcel burdened by these easements as well as Seller’s parcel containing 5.13 

acres, currently identified in the records of the Bulloch County Tax Assessor as Parcel 

Number 050 000030 000. 

 The parcel burdened by these easements as well as the Seller’s parcel containing 

5.13 acres, currently identified in the records of the Bulloch County Tax Assessor as 

Parcel Number 050 000030 000 are in Tax Allocation District #1 (hereinafter referred to 

as the “District”) as described in that certain Intergovernmental Agreement entered into 

as of March 5, 2013, by and between the Bulloch County Board of Commissioners and 

the Mayor and City Council of Statesboro (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Intergovernmental Agreement”).  Seller warrants that the Intergovernmental Agreement 

requires the expansion of water and sewer infrastructure to the District to have sufficient 



capacity to provide the District a minimum of five hundred thousand (500,000) gallons 

per day of water capacity, four hundred thousand (400,000) gallons per day of sewer 

capacity, and one thousand five hundred (1,500) gallons per minute at twenty-five (25) 

pounds per square inch of pressure within the District.   

 Said utility easement is granted to Buyer for the purpose of construction, 

installation and subsequent maintenance of a water and sewer line and will be a perpetual 

easement.  Said temporary construction easement is granted to Buyer for the purpose 

constructing and installing a water and sewer line.  The temporary construction easement 

herein granted shall expire upon completion and final acceptance of said project by the 

City of Statesboro. 

 It is agreed that such documents or other instruments as may be legally necessary 

to carry out the terms of this Contract shall be executed and delivered by the parties at 

interest as soon as reasonably possible. 

 This Contract constitutes the sole and entire agreement between parties and no 

modification hereof shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by each; and no 

representations, promises or inducements shall be binding upon either party except as 

herein stated.  

 This Contract shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the parties hereto, 

their heirs, successors, administrators, executors and/or assigns. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as of the 

_____ day of _______________, 2014. 

       THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF  
      STATESBORO, BUYER 
 
 
______________________________ By:_________________________________ 
Unofficial Witness    JAN J. MOORE, Mayor  
 
______________________________ Attest:______________________________ 
Notary Public     SUE STARLING, City Clerk 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Unofficial Witness    PAUL A. WHITLOCK, JR, SELLER 
 
______________________________  
Notary Public  


































	09-16-2014 Council Agenda
	09-2014 Adopt-A-Spot (1)
	09-03-2014 Council minutes
	09-09-2014 public hearing millage rate minutes 12 noon
	09-09-2014 public hearing millage rate minutes 6 pm
	09-2014 2004 Ford Crown Victoria for destruction
	09-2014-31 A RESOLUTION SETTING THE MILLAGE RATE FOR AD VALOREM
	09-16-2014 Planning
	09-2014- 02  Ordinance Amendment
	09-2014-30  Appointment Resolution
	09-2014 Tymco Sweeper
	09-2014 Retrofit Bid Extension Recommendation Memo
	09-2014 CONTRACT FOR GRANT OF EASEMENT
	09-2014 Whitlock Easement--Exhibit A (2)
	09-2014 Georgia Railroad Company

